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UMNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORX
__________________________________ X
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
 Plaintif
v. . S$f—10-CR-363 (GBD) o
MICHAEL YARON,
MOSHE BUCHNIK,
SANTO SAGLIMBENL, . Piled:
EMILIO A/K/A “TONY” FIGUEROA,
CAMBRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL . Violations:
& CONSTRUCTION CORP., D/B/A 18 U.S.C. § 1349
NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL . 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 1346 and 2
ASSOCIATES, - 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1346 and 2
OXFORD CONSTRUCTION & . 18US.C. §981(a)1)C)
DEVELOPMENT CORP., and .
ARTECH CORP. -
Defendants.
SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT TR
The Grand Jury charges:
COUNT ONE
WIRE FRAUD CONSPIRACY

(18 U.S.C. § 1349)
1. MICHAEL YARON, MOSHE BUCHNIK, SANTOC SAGLIMBENI,
CEMILIO AJK/A “TONY” FIGUEROA, OXFORD CONSTRUCTION &

DEVELOPMENT CORP., CAMBRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL & CONSTRUCTION



Case 1:10-cr-00363-GBD-GWG Document 40 Filed 10/28/10 Page 2 of 22

i iy

CORP., D/B/A NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSOCIATES, and ARTECIH CORP.
are hereby indicted and made defendants on the charge stated below.

L. THE RELEVANT PARTIES AND ENTITIES

- During the period covered by this Count:

2. Defendant MICHAEL YAROMN (hereinafter “YARON"), resided in
Meadowbrook, Pennsylvania. Defendant YARON was an owner and controlled
defendant OXFORD CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT CORP., (hereinafter
“OXFORD”) that was located at One Penn Plaza, New York, New York, and was in the
business of providing c;mstmction services. Defendant YARON was also the owner of
defendant CAMBRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL & CONSTRUCTION CORP., D/B/A
NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSOCIATES (hereinafter “CAMBRIDGE/NEA™)
that was located in Meadowbrook, Pennsylvania, and was in the business of providing
asbestos -abaternent services.

3. Defendant MOSHE BUCHNIK {hereinafter “BUCHNIK?), resided i
Richboro, Peansylvania. Defendant BUCHNIK was the president of Company-1 and
Company-2 that were located at his residence in Richboro, Pennsylvania, and were in the
business of providing asbestos abatement services. Portions of the money Company-1
and Company-2 earned were deposited into defendant CAMBRIDGE/NEA’s bank
account.

£ L 113

4. Defendant SANTO SAGLIMBENI (hereinatter
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in Armonk, New York. SAGLIMBENI was a Director of Facilifies land Operations and
the Director of Engineering at New York Presbyterian Hospital (hereinafier “NYPH")
through 2005 and the Vice President of Facilities and Operations through Januacy 2008.
At all times, during the period covered by this count, defendant SAGLIMBENI had the
authority to select vendors to perform various services, including construction, asbestos
abatement and asbestos monitoring. |

5. Defendant ARTECH CORP. (hereinafter “ARTECH™) was located in
Yonkers, New York. Defendant ARTECH was owned by a relative of defendant
SAGLIMBENI.

6. Defendant EMILIO A/K/A “TONY” FIGUEROA (heremnafter
“FIGUEROA™) was a Building Systems Manager at NYPH through 2005 and a Director
of Facilities Operations though March 2008. At aill times, during the period covered by
this count, defendant FIGUEROA had the ability to assist Defendant SAGLIMBENI in
selecting vendors to perform work at NYPH.

7. «(C-1” and “CC-2” were co-conspirators who owned Company-3 and its
successor, respectively, which provided aig m—onitoring services to NYPH and consulting
 services to NYPH for the selection of companies to perform asbestos abatement services.
Defendant YARON set up and controlled Company-3 and its successor. As consultants to
NYPH, Company-3 and its successor solicited bids for asbestos abatement services at

.

NYPH. Company-3 and its successor were located in Brooklyn, New ¥ ork and New

L2
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York, New York. Portions of the money Compaiy-3 and {5 SUCCEssOr eamed were
deposited into defendant CAMBRIDGE/NEA’s bank accounts.

8. «((C.3" was a co-conspirator who owned a company that performed
constriction services that was located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

9 “C(C-4” and “CC-5” were co-conspirators who owned a fravel agency and
construction companies located in Brooklyn, New York.

10.  “CC-6" was a co-conspirator who owned a company that performed
construction services that was located in Washington, D.C. During part of the perioé
charged in this Count, CC—6'was employed as a consultant by defendant OXFORD,

11.  “CC-7" was 2 co-conspirator who owned a company that was a wholesaler
of nondurable goods, specializing in “variety” store merchandise that was located in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

12. Whenever in this Connt reference is made to any act, deed, or iransaction of
any corporation, such allegation shall be deemed to mean that the corporation engaged in
such act, deed, or transaction by or through its officers, directors, agents, employees, or
representatives while they were actively en gaged in the management, direction, control, or
transaction of its busmess or a‘ffaizé.

13.  Various persons and companies, not made defendants herein, participated as
co-conspirators in the offense charged herein and performed acts and made statements in

furtherance thereof.
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(. DEFINITIONS

Yot

14,  “Asbestos abaternent services” is the removal of asbestos-containing

material and must be performed in accordance with federal, state and local law.
15 “Air monitoring services” includes the testing of air samples to detect
asbestos plarticles before, during and after an asbestos abatement project.
f 16.  “Construction services” includes performing the duties ass-ociated with
construction management and/or project management.
II1. BACK.GROUND

Dﬁring the period covered by this Count:

17 NYPH had facilities at 525 East 68 Street, New York, New York, and 627
West 165 Street, New York, New York. NYPH maintained a competitive bidding policy
to the effect that three bids were obtained for all purchases where: (a) the value of a single
itern was over $5,000; (b) the value of a single purchase was over $10,000; (c) the annual
value of a product, product line, or service was over $50,000; or (d) otherwise where
competitive bidding was advantageous. Specific exclusﬁons to this policy were those
circumstancés \#here: (a) an itern was pufchased through an available group purchasing
agreement or contract/pﬁcing agreement; (b) an item was deerned to be a sole source
purchase if there was adequate justification; (¢) there was no known alternate source; (d)
the purchases were 30 complex that compliant bids were not expected; or (e) the Chief

Resource Officer or Director determined that a negotiated purchase would be used.
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3 prohibited bids to be shared with the bidders prior fo the award of
any confract.
19.  Defendant SAGLIMBENI had responsibility for obtaining bids from
~vendors, a.ljd.a\;{.ardigg contracts in accordance with NYPH’s policies and procedures,
including NYPH’s competitive bidding policy describeci m i)afagraﬁﬁé 17 énd 18 éﬁo§e.
20. NYPH maintained a policy prohibiting employees, including defendants
SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA, from accepting from any vendor any gift if such action
could be construed as an attempt to influence its employees improperly in the exercise of
their business judgement. Gifts of money were never permissible. Entertainment or other
gifts from vendors were to be no more than nominal value, were to be disclosed to the
employee’s supervisor, and such payments or gifts in the aggregate must not have been of
sufficient magnitude to affect the employee’s business judgement.
21. A New York City Department of Environmental Protection (hereinafter
“DEP™) regulation required that any air monitoring company be completely independent
of any asbestos abatement company that was performing work on the same asbestos

abatement project.

IV. DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFENSE

22.  From at least as carly as 2000 and continuing through at least January 2008,
the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in the Southern District of New York

and elsewhere, the defendants, their co-conspirators, and others known and unknown,
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unlawfally, willfuily, and knowingly did combine, conspire, confederate, and agrﬁé
together and with each other {© commit offenses against the United States, to wit, to
violate Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 1346, in violation of Title 18,
- United States Code, Section 1349..

23.  Jtwasapart and an object of the conspiracy that the defendants and their
co-conspirators, and others known and unknown, unlawfully, willfully and knowingly,
would and did devise and intend to devise a scheme and attifice to defraud NYPH, and fo
obtain monéy and property from NYPH by means of false and fraudulent prefenses,
representations, and promises, and to deprive NYPH of its intangible right to the honest
and faithful services of its employees through kickbacks, for the purpose of executing
such scheme and artifice, and attempting to do so, would and did transmit and cause to be
transmitted in interstate comnmerce by raeans of wire communications certain writings,
signs, signals and sounds, in violation Title 18, United States Code, .Seciions 1343 and
" 1346.

V. THE MANNER AND MEANS BY WHICH THE -
CONSPIRACY WAS CARRIED OUT

The manner and means by which the conspiracy was sought to be accomplished
included, among others, the following:
24. From af least as early as 2000 and continuing thréugh at least January 2008,
deferadants YARON and BUCHNIK paid kickbacks to defendant SAGLIMBENI and

engaged in other frandulent schemes for the purpose of defendants SAGLIMBENI



Case 1:10-cr-00363-GBD-GWG  Document 40 Filed 10/26/10 Page 8of22

and/or FIGURROA steering air monitoring services, asbestos abatement services, and
laer, construction services contracts at NYPH to companies owned or controlled by

defendant YARON and/or defendant BUCHNIK.

. Asbestos Kickbadk Scheme

75.  From at least as early as 2000 and continuing through at least January 2008,
defendants YARON and BUCfINIK paid kickbacks to defendant SAGLIMBENI in
order for Company-1 to be awarded asbestos abatement projects at NYPH.

96.  From at least as early as 2000 and continning through at least January 2008,
defendants YARON and RUCHNIK paid kickbacks to defendant SAGLIMBENI in
order for Company-3 and its successor to be the consultant at NYPH and the air
monitoring company on the asbestos abatement projects performed by Company-1 at
NYPH.

97 From at least as early as 2000 and continuing through at least January 2008,
defendant YARON, through his control of Company-1 and Company-3, violated DEP
regulations because Company_—l and Company-3 were not completely independent of one
another. |

58, NYPH was unaware that defendants YARON and BUCHNIK paid
kickbacks to defendant SAGLIMBENI in return for the asbestos abatement and air
monitoring work at NYPH being awarded to companies controlled and/or‘ow:ned by

defendant YARON and/or defendant BUCHN
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Consiruction Services Kickback Scheme

29.  From af least as early as 2000 and continuing through at least January 2008,
defendants YARON and BUCHNIK paid i_{i_ckbacks o d_efendaa_}; SAGLIMBENI mn
order for defendant OXFORD to be awarded construction services work at N YPH.

30.  Inand around 2003, defendant ARTECH was created by defendant
SAGLIMBENI in order to conceal the kickbacks he received from defendants YARON
and BUCHNIK. In retorn for the kickbacks, defendant SAGLIMBENI influenced the
award of construction services contracts, asbestos abatement services contracts and air |
monitoring services contracts at NYPH to companies owned and/or controlled by
defendants YARON and BUCHNIK.

31,7 To con.ceal the existence of th; kickbacks paid to deft;ndant
SAGLIMBENI, defendants YARON and BUCHNIK caused defendants OXFORD and
CAMBRIDGE/NEA to funnel payments to defendant ARTECH for the benefit of
defendant SAGLIMBENI through five companies and one individual, namely,
Company-2, éompaﬁies owned by CC-3 through CC-7, and CC-7 thréugh the following
fraudulent transactions:

2) On several occasions, defendants OXFORD and CAMBRIDGE/MNEA.
paid Company-2, which was ow.neé by defendant BUCHNIK, for purported professional

L I P e
L Liky ™

services purporiedly provided by Company-2. m &
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. ARTECH substantially the same amount on ot about the same dates for purported
construction sefvices;

b) On several occasions, defendants OXFORD and CAMBRIDGE/NEA

paid CC-3’s company for construction services pq;po;te.d“ly p;qvidcd by defendant
ARTECH to defendant YARON that, in fact, never occurred. In turn, defendant
VARON instructed CC-3 to pay defendant ARTECH substantially the saine amount on
or about the same dates it received payment from defendants OXFORD and
CAMBRIDGE/NEA. The remainder of the money CC-3 received from defendants
OXFORD and CAMBRIDGE/NEA was a commission for transferring this moncﬁr from
Yaron to defendant SAGLIMBENTI through defendant ARTECH;

¢) On two occasions, defendants OXFORD and CAMBRIDGE/NEA paid
CC-4’s anrd CC-5’s company for supplies that were never provided. In tumn, defendant
BUCHNIK instructed CC-4 and CC-5 to pay defendant ARTECH sﬁbstantially tfze same
amount on or about the same dates;

d) On several occasions, defendants OXFORD and CAMBRIDGE/NEA
paid CC-6’s company for survey, abatement and construction services purportedly
provided by CC-6s company to defendant CAMBRIDGE/NEA. In tum, CC-6’s
company paid defendant ARTECH substantially the same amount on or about the same
dates; and |

e) Defendant YARON requeste

10
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and further instructed CC-7 to send the “proceeds’™ of thal purpesied “loan” o defendant
ARTECH. Thereafter, defendant YARON caused defendant CAMBRIDGE/NEA to pay
CC-7 substantially the same amount as repayment of that “loan”.

37, NYPH was unaware that defendants YARON and BUCHNIE pai;i_ -
kickbacks to defendants SAGLIMBENT in refurn for the gonstruction services work at
NYPH being awarded to defendant OXFORD.

VI. OVERT ACTS

" 33 In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effect the illegal objecis thereof, the
defendants and others known and unknown, committed the following overt acls, among
others, in the Southern District of New York, and elsewhere:

a)' On numerous occasions, defendants YARON, BUCHNIK and
SAGLIMBENI é:eiﬁsed defendant ARTECH to deposit checks from third parties with
bank accounts outside New York into defendant ARTECHs bank account located in the
Southern District of New York, which checks were cleared by wire communications
between the financial institutions.

b) On numerous occasions, defendant SAGLIMBENI fraudulently
cansed NYPH to issue purchase orders awarding work to defendant OXFORD and
Company-1 which were located in the Southern District of New York.

c} O numerous occasions, defendant FIGUEROA fraudulently caused

NYPH to issue purchase orders awarding woik o defendant OXFORD which was located

11
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in the Southermn District of New York.
N VIOLATION OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 1345.
COUNT TWO
(18 U.S.C. §§1343, 1346 and'Z)

The Grand Jury further charges:

34,  YARON, BUCHNIK, SAGLIMBENL, OXFORD, CANIERIDGEINEA,
angd ARTECH are hereby indicted and made defendants on the charge stated below in
Count Two:

35.  Paragraphs.2 through 5, 7 through 11, 14 through 21 and 24 through 32 of
Count One of this Indictment are repeated, realleged, and incoxporate& m Count Two as
| if fully set forth in this Count.

VIL DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFENSE

36, Oneor aﬁout May 5, 2005, in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere, the defendants and others known and unknown, unlawiully, willfu}iy, and
knowingly, having devised and intending fo devise a scheme and artifice to defraud
NYPH, and to obtain money and property from NYPH by means of false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations, and promises, and to deprive NYPH of its intangible right to
the honest and faithful services of its employees through kickbacks, for the purpose of
executing such scheme and .artiﬁcé, and atfernpting to do SO,‘ did transmit and cause to be

transmifted in inferstate commerce by means of wire communications certain writings,

12
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signs, signals and sounds, fo wit, the defendanis participated in a scheme whereby iu
exchange for kickbacks from defendanis YARON and BUCHNIK, defendant
$AGLIMBENI fraudulently caused over $42,000,000 in contracts to be awarded by -
 NYPH to defendant OXFORD, Company-1, Company-3 and its S‘%‘?@?‘?F .

37 The use of the wires in furtherance of this scheme included the following:
on approximately May 5, 2005, defendant ARTECH deposited into its financial account
1 the Southern District of New York a $71,500 check from CC-4's company’s financial
account in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, which was cleared by wire cormmunications
between the financial institutions.

IN VIOLATION OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTIONS 1343, 1346 and

2.

COUNT THREE
MAIL FRAUD CONSPIRACY
(18 U.S.C. § 1349)

The Grand Jury further charges:
38 SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA. are hereby indicted and made defendants
on the charge stated below in Count Three.
-39, Paragraphs 4,6, 12,13, and 17 through 20 of Count One of this Indictment
are repeated, realleged, and incorporated in Count Three as if fully set forth in this

Count

T3
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VL. THE RELEVANT PARTIES AND ENTLHES

During the period covered by this Count:

40.  Defendant SAGLIMBENI had the authority to select various vendors to
I ut not limited to vendors in the business of
installing and repairing heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems (“HVAC”).

41 Defendant FIGUEROA was an assistant to SAGLIMBENI, and in that
position, had the ability to select vendors to perform quk at NYPH, including but not
limited to vendors that performed HVAC work. Defendant FIGUEROA also had the
ébility to influence defendant SAGLIMBEND's selection of HVAC vendors at NYPH.

42_ «C(C-8” was a co-conspirator who owned a company located in Rockville
Centre, New York, that was engaged in the business of providing HVAC services at

NYPH.

IX. DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFENSE

43, Beginning at least as early as June 2001 and continuing through at least
June 2006, the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in therSouthern District of.
New York and elsewhere, defendants SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA, énd others known
and unknown, unlawfully, willfully, and knowingly did combine, conspire, confederate,
and agree together and with each other to commit offenses against the United States of

~

America, to wit, to violate Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 1346,

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.

14
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44, Tt was a part and object of the conspiracy that defendant SAGLIMBENI,
defendant FIGUERQOA, and their co-conspirators, unlawfully, willfolly, and knowingly,
would and did devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud NYPH, and to
sroperty from NYPH by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,
representations, and promises, and to deprive NYPH of its intangible right to the honest
and faithful services of its employees through kickbacks, and for the purpose of
executing such scheme and artifice, and attempting to do so, would and did place in post
offices and authorized depositories for mail matfer, matters and things to be sent and
delivered by the Postal Service, and deposit and cause to be deposited matters and things
to be sent or delivered by private and commercial interstate carriers, and take and receive
therefrom, such matiers and things, and knowingly cause io be delivered by mail and such
carriers according fo the directions thereon, or at the place at which they were directed to
be delivered by the persons to whom they were addressed such matters and things, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 1346.

X, THE MANNER AND MEANS BY WHICH THE
CONSPIRACY WAS CARRIED OUT

The manner and means by which the conspiracy was sought to be accomplished

included, among others, the following.

45, During ail or some of the period between at least as early as June 2001 and

confinuing through at least June 2006, CC-8 paid kickbacks in the form of cash, goods

15
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and; services 1o defendant SAGLIMBENI in order to ensure that defendant
SAGLIMBENI would award HVAC contracts at NYPH to CC-8's companf.

46. During all or some of the pertod between at least as early as June 2001 and
aast June 2006, CC-8 paid kickbacks in the form of cash, goods
and services to defendant FIGUEROA in order to ensure that defendant FIGUEROA
would award HVAC contracts at NYPH to CC-8’s company.

47 Af no time did defendant SAGLIMBEN], defendant FIGUEROA or any of
their co-conspirators disclose to NYPH the receipt of cash; goods and services by
defendant SAGLIMBENI or defendant FIGUEROA in return for the award of HVAC
contraets to CC-8's company. All such kickéacks were made without the knowledge or
approval of NYPH.

X1 OVERT ACTS

48.  In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effect the illegal objects thereof, the
defendants and others known and unknown, committed the following overt acts, among
others, in the Southern District of New York, and elsewhere:

a) On numerous occasions, between at least as early as June 2001 and
continuing through at least June 2006, defendants SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA
cansed NYPH to issue purchase orders to CC-8’s company. Some of these purchase
orders were sent through the Uniiéd States matls from NYPITs offices in the Southem

District of New York to the office of CC-8’s company; and

16
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5) On numerous oceasions, between at least as early as June 2001 and
continuing through at least June 2006, CC-8 paid numerous kickbacks o defendants

SAGLIMBENT and FIGUEROA i the form of cash, goods and services in order to

N VIOLATION OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 1349.

COUNT FOUR
MAJL FRAUD
(18 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1346 and 2)

The Grand Jury further charges:

49. SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA are hereby indicted and made defendants
on the charge stated below in Count Four:

50. Paragraphs 4,6, 12,13, 17 through 20 of Count One, and paragraphs 39
4 . through 41 and 44 through 46 of Count Three of this Indictment are repeated, reaﬂeged,
and incorporated in Count Four as if fully set forth in this Count. |

11 DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFENSE

51, On or about May 5, 2005, in the Seuthern District of New York and
elsewﬁere, defendant SAGLIMBENI, defendant FIGUEROA. and their co-conspirators,
nnlaw fally, wiltfully, and knowingly, having devised and infending to devise a scheme
and artifice to defraud NYPH, and to obtain money and property from NYPH by means of
false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and to deprive NYPH of is

intangible right to the honest and faithiul services of its employees through kickoacks, for

17
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the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice, and aftempling to do so, would and
did place in poét offices and a&horiz&d depositories for mail matter, matters and_things to
be sent and delivered by the Postal Service, and deposit and cause to be deposited matters
- and things to be sent or delivered by private. and commercial mnierstate ca_r:rie_rs, and take
and receive therefrom, such matters and things, and knowingly cause to be delivered by
mail and such carriers according to the directions thereon, or at the place at which they
were directed to be delivered by the pcfsons to whom they were addressed such matters
and things, to wit, the defendants participated in 2 scheme whereby in exchange for
Iickbacks from CC-8, defendanis SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA fraudulently caused
HYAC contracts to be awarded to CC-8's company.

52, The use of the mails in furtherance of this schem; included the following:
on approximately May 5, 2005, defendants SAGLIMBENI and FIGUEROA knowingly
caused N'YPH to mail a check that included payment on a purchase order in the amount
of$12,514 from NYPH’s offices in the Southemn District of New York to CC-8%s
company that was located in Rockville Centre, New York, for payment on work
fraudulently awarded to CC-8’s company by defendants SAGLIMBEN] and
FIGUEROA in exchange for kickbacks to them.

IN VIOLATION OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTIONS 1341, 1346 and
Z.

18
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53 The allegations contained in Counts One and Two of this Indictment are
rep¢atcd, realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein for the
ourpose of alleging forfeifure pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 981(a)}1)(C) and Title 28, United States_ Code 2461. As a result of committing
wire fraud and the copspiracy to cormmit wire frand in violation of Title 18, United States
Codé, Sections 1343, 1346 and 1349 alleged in Counts One and Two, defendants
YARON, BUCHNIK, SAGLIMBEN], OXFORD, CAMBRIDGE/MNEA. and ARTECH,
shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section:
981(2)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code 2461, any property, real or personal, that

constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the commission of the offenses.

Subsﬁtute Assets

54.  Ifany of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission
of the defendanis:
(a) cannot be located upon exercise of due diligence;
{b) has been %ransfe:red or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
(¢) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

{d) has been substanfiaﬂy diminished in value; or

19
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States Code, Section 2461(c), incorporating 21 U.S.C. § 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any
other property of the defendants up io the value of the property subject to forfeiture,
including but not limited té the following property:

(1) Any interest in the real property and appurtenances thereto knownas 7 -
Whispering Fiélds Court, Southampton, New York, in the County Clerk and Register of
Suffolk County, New York; and

{2) Any interest in the property in accounts: #xx0ooooxx 7508 and
ook 7511 at Wachovia Bank, NLA.; #xxoxxx3025 and #xoe0009135 at TD Bank
North, N.A.; #xoxeoex3465 and Hoooooox3466 at TP Morgan Chase Bank; #xoox4854

and #xxxx 7403 at Citibank N.A.; #xxxoooex 6418 at Bank of America; #xxxxx0780 at

20
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HSBC Bank U.S.A., N.A.; and #xxxooxx 0856 at Bank of New York Mellon.

ALL PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 981(a){(1)}(C)
AND 28 UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 2461{c).

Dated:

Assxstant Attorney General

]

SCOTT D. HAMMOND
Deputy Assistant Aftorney General

MARC smeﬁf
Director, Criminal Eaforcement
Antitrust Division

U.S. Department of Justice

/Za@f%‘bg

PREET BHARARA
United States Attorney
Southern District of New York
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RAFPH T. GIORTJANO
Chief, New York Office

Wl

STEPHEN J. VECAHEY
JEFFREY D. MARTINO
MARY ANNEF. CARNIVAL
EDWARD FRIEDMAN
Attorneys, Antitrust Division
UJ.S. Departroent of Justice

26 Federal Plaza, Room 3630
New York, New York 10278
212-264-0656




